
 
 

 
 
 
11 July 2017 
 
 
To: Councillors Clapham, Collett, Mrs Henderson MBE, Hunter, Jackson, I Taylor and 

L Williams  
 

The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 20 July 2017 at 6.00 pm 
in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool 

 

A G E N D A 
 

ADMISSION OF THE PUBLIC TO COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

The Head of Democratic Governance has marked with an asterisk (*) those items where the 
Committee may need to consider whether the public should be excluded from the meeting as 

the items are likely to disclose exempt information. 
The nature of the exempt information is shown in brackets after the item. 

 
 

 1  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state:  
 
(1) the type of interest concerned; and 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned 
 
If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 

 
 2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 19 JULY 2016  (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
  To agree the minutes of the last meeting held on 19 July 2016 as a true and correct 

record. 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 3  WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY  (Pages 3 - 20) 
 

  The purpose of this report is to consider a proposed revision of the Council’s 
Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure. 

 
 4  STANDARDS UPDATE REPORT  (Pages 21 - 24) 

 
  To consider an update report from the Monitoring Officer on standards issues raised 

during the previous 12 months under the standards framework. 
 

* 5  REGISTER OF INTERESTS  (Pages 25 - 30) 
 

  (This item contains personal information regarding the individual(s) and information 
relation to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime, which are exempt from publication by virtue of 
Paragraphs 1 and 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972). 

 
 6  DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 
  The Committee is asked to note that the date of the next meeting will be Tuesday 28 

November 2017. 
 

 

Venue information: 
 
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Lorraine Hurst, Head of Democratic 
Governance, Tel: (01253) 477127, e-mail lorraine.hurst@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


MINUTES OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 19 JULY 2016 
 
 

Present:  
 
Councillor Jackson (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors 
 
Clapham Hobson Hunter Singleton 
 
In Attendance:  
 
Mrs Helen Broughton, Independent Person 
Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships / Monitoring Officer 
Lorraine Hurst, Head of Democratic Governance / Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 
 
1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 23 JUNE 2015 
 
The Committee agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2015 be signed 
by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
3 STANDARDS UPDATE 
 
Members were aware of the framework for dealing with allegations of member 
misconduct and that the Monitoring Officer was the Council’s Proper Officer for receiving 
allegations and considering appropriate action.  Mr Towers, Monitoring Officer, provided 
the Committee with a schedule of all matters arising since the last report in June 2015 
according to the categories within the Code of Conduct.  Members noted that there were 
relatively few allegations received and that any that had related to the Code of Conduct 
had been dealt with informally. 
 
The Committee recalled that a joint working group with Fylde Borough councillors had 
been proposed at the last meeting to review the framework for dealing with allegations.  
The Monitoring Officer reported that the working group had not met due to a change in 
committee membership at Fylde Borough Council and the recent appointment of a new 
independent person and therefore the framework would be reviewed as appropriate at a 
future date. 
 
The Committee agreed to note the update report and the issues raised to date. 
 
4 DISMISSAL ARRANGEMENTS - STATUTORY OFFICERS 
 
Mr Towers reminded the Committee that the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) 
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 had been considered at the last meeting and 
related to procedural changes in instances where the Council’s three statutory Chief 
Officers, namely the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance 
Officer, were subject to a dismissal action.  Members were aware that a Panel of three Page 1

Agenda Item 2



MINUTES OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING - TUESDAY, 19 JULY 2016 
 
 

independent persons had been appointed, which would offer advice, views or 
recommendations to the full Council meeting which would then take the final decision in 
relation to any potential dismissal.  
 
The Monitoring Officer reported that there had been some uncertainty nationally 
regarding interpretation of the legislation and whether it required the establishment of a 
Panel or a politically balanced committee.  However, recent guidance from the 
Department Communities and Local Government had accepted that the Panel should 
comprise only of independent persons and therefore the Council’s arrangements were in 
line with the guidance.   
 
Members noted that Mrs Helen Broughton, who had been appointed recently by the 
Council as an independent person, had agreed to act on the Panel in that respect and that 
training with all three independent persons had taken place alongside a discussion on 
how the procedures for such instances would operate in practice.  Mr Towers advised 
members that a report would be brought back to the next Committee meeting with 
further details. 
 
The Committee agreed to note the update report and that a report would be considered 
at the next Standards Committee meeting on how the procedures would operate. 
 
 
  
 
 
  
  
  
  
Chairman 
  
(The meeting ended at 6.15 pm) 
  
Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: 
Lorraine Hurst, Head of Democratic Governance 
Tel: (01253) 477127 
E-mail: lorraine.hurst@blackpool.gov.uk 

Page 2



Report to: Standards Committee 

Relevant Officer: Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships / Monitoring 
Officer 

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2017 

 

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY  
 
1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider a proposed revision of the Council’s 
Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To agree to the revisions to the Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure, as submitted. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

Under the Council’s constitution, the Standards Committee has a duty to monitor and 
review as necessary the operation of the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved 
by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered: 

 To keep the current policy, however it is out of date and needs refreshing. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 This report covers all of the Council’s priorities. 
 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 

As part of the ongoing development and continuous improvement of Council Policy 
and practice an internal project group was established to review the current 
procedure. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



The group included: 
 
• Director of Governance and Partnership services (Monitoring Officer) 
• Employee Relations Manager and Deputy Manager 
• Chief Internal Auditor    
• HR Policy Officer 
 

5.2 The revised procedure is shown at Appendix 3(a) of this report  
 
The proposed changes include: 
 

 Updates to reflect the latest Council’s constitution and supporting policies 

 Updates to reflect the Council core values  

 Clarification which existing procedures can be used to deal with issues of 
concern  

 Providing clarification how issues of fraud can be dealt with  

 Providing additional information how customer complaints can be dealt with 

 Putting forward additional officers to the Departmental Contacts list 

 Making reference to further information about the Public Interest Act.  
 
It is noted that the proposed changes reflect the best practice requirements from the 
Whistleblowing Commission - Code of Practice. 
 

5.3 As good practice the procedure names a number of officers who act a whistleblowing 
champions within Departments – part of their role is to act as a key contact point to 
receive and filter Whistleblowing cases. It was recognised that due to officers leaving 
the Council the list of named contacts had diminished. Therefore, to add further 
capacity a number of new officers have been included as suggested additions.  
Relevant coaching will be given to all those quoted in the process. 
 

5.4 As the whistleblowing procedure is an important part of ensuring that the Council 
ethics and integrity is upheld.  It is intended (when approved) to communicate the 
launch of the approved document by the following means: 
 

• Hub News items 
• Newsletters  
• Briefing for Departmental contacts 

 
5.5 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 

 
No  

5.6 List of Appendices: 
 

 

 Appendix 3(a) – Draft Whistleblowing Procedure 

Page 4



6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

The proposed procedure fulfils the Council’s obligation regarding whistleblowing.  

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

The Framework applies to all employees of Blackpool Council. 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

Equality issues of this policy have been explored alongside the framework and an 
equality analysis has been completed accordingly. 
 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

There are no financial implications associated with this report.  

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 A clear revised procedure will reduce or eliminate the risk of inconsistent employee 
practices and procedures. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

The revised procedure will be integral to the ethos of the Council’s Core value:  
 
‘We act with integrity and we are trustworthy in all our dealings with people and we 
are open about the decisions we make and the services we offer’.  
 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

Consultation has taken place within the Council from the key service leads regarding 
governance. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

None. 
 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 1 of 13 

        

CONTENTS 

 Page 

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 1 

1. Policy and Procedure Statement  1 

2. Scope of this Policy 2 

3. Harassment or Victimisation 3 

4. Confidentiality 4 

5. Anonymous Allegations 4 

6. Untrue Allegations 4 

7. Support for Employees 4 

WHISTLEBLOWING PROCEDURE 5 

8. How to raise a Concern 5 

9. Managers 5 

          10. Other related Procedures 5 

          11. Internal Disclosures 6 

          12. How the Council will Respond 6 

          13. The Responsible Officer  7 

          14. How the matter can be taken further 7 

APPENDICIES  

          Appendix 1 – Internal Contacts 8 

          Appendix 2 – External Contacts 9 

          Appendix 3  - Report made under the Whistleblowing Procedure 11 

          Appendix 4  - Existing Procedures to raise issues of Concern 12 

 
WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 

 
1. Policy and Procedure Statement 
  
1.1 Employees are often the first to realise that there may be something seriously wrong within the 

Council.  However, they may not express their concerns because they feel that speaking up would 
be disloyal to their colleagues or to the Council.  They may also fear bullying, harassment or 
victimisation.  In these circumstances it may be easier for them to ignore the concern rather than 
report what may be a suspicion of malpractice. This policy is aimed at making sure, as far as 
reasonably practicable there is a safe environment to have such issues aired. 

  
1.2 Blackpool Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, professionalism and 

accountability.  In line with that commitment we expect employees and others that we deal with, 
who have serious concerns about any aspect of the Council's work, to come forward and voice 
those concerns. This policy is integral to the ethos of the Council and its Core values in particular 
“We act with integrity and we are trustworthy in all our dealings with people and we are open 
about the decisions and the services we offer. “ 

 
  

Page 7



BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 2 of 13 

        

 
1.3 Anyone who raises a concern is protected by the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 which is 

incorporated into the Employment Rights Act 1996.  This Whistleblowing Policy is intended to 
encourage and enable employees to raise serious concerns within the Council rather than 
overlooking a problem or `blowing the whistle' outside.  Remember, a whistleblower is a witness, 
not a complainant.   

 
1.4 The Bribery Act (2010) creates an offence of offering or receiving bribes. It is also an offence if an 

organisation fails to prevent a bribe being paid on the organisation’s behalf. However, this new 
legislation simply reflects existing guidance for Council Officers contained in the existing Code of 
Conduct document (Section 7.4.6). 

  
1.5 The Policy applies to all employees and those contractors working for the Council on its premises, 

for example, volunteers, agency staff, builders etc.  It also covers suppliers and those providing 
services under a contract with the Council in their own premises, for example, care homes. 

  
1.6 This procedure is in addition to the Council’s complaints procedures and other reporting 

procedures applying to some departments. The holding of any data in connection with this 
procedure will comply with the Data Protection Act 1998. 

   
2. Scope 
  
2.1 This Policy aims to: 
  

 encourage employees1 to feel confident in raising serious concerns and to question and act 
upon concerns about practice, including those that are made in the public interest ; 

 provide guidelines for employees to raise concerns and receive feedback on any action taken; 
 ensure that employees receive a response to their concerns and that they are aware of how to 

pursue them if they are not satisfied; 
 reassure employees that they will be protected from possible reprisals or victimisation. 

 
2.2 All employees have a legal and moral responsibility to report improper acts and omissions.  In 

some circumstances, failure to raise such concerns may amount to breach of contract or breaking 
the law. 

 
2.3 Under the provisions of The Bribery Act 2010 there is a requirement for employers to adopt 

measures to prevent bribery on its behalf. This Whistleblowing policy is an essential tool in helping 
to protect the Council and you are therefore encouraged to report any genuine concerns. 

 
2.4 This Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure is intended to cover major concerns that fall outside the 

scope of other procedures.  These include: 
  

 conduct which is an offence or a breach of law; 
 failure to comply with a legal obligation; 

                                                
1 This includes employees, elected members and other persons considered as appropriate eg contractors.  

Page 8

http://hub/intranet/modules/services/default.aspx?id=147&did=-730467
http://hub/intranet/modules/services/default.aspx?id=147&did=-730467


BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 3 of 13 

        

 disclosures related to miscarriages of justice (e.g. failure to provide evidence in a criminal 
investigation, perjury); 

 health and safety risks, including risks to the public as well as other employees; 
 damage to the environment; 
 the unauthorised use of public funds; 
 offering or receiving bribes as defined in the Bribery Act 2010 
 possible fraud and corruption; 
 sexual or physical abuse of clients; 
 other unethical conduct; 
 actions which are unprofessional, inappropriate or conflict with a general understanding of what is 

right and wrong; 
 deliberate covering up of information relating to any of the above. 

  
2.5 Thus, any serious concerns that employees have about any aspect of service provision or the 

conduct of officers or members of the Council or others acting on behalf of the Council can be 
reported under this Policy and Procedure.  This may be about something that: 

  
 makes them feel uncomfortable in terms of known standards, their experience or the standards 

they believe the Council subscribes to; 
 is against the Council's Constitution and supporting policies; 
 falls below established standards of practice; or 
 amounts to improper conduct. 
 Breaches of the Bribery Act 2010 

  
2.6 It should be emphasised that this Policy is intended to assist employees who believe they have 

discovered malpractice or impropriety.  It is not designed to question financial or management 
decisions taken by the Council, nor should it be used to reconsider any matters which have already 
been, or are currently being, addressed under the bullying, harassment, complaints, grievance, 
disciplinary or other procedures. This includes blowing the whistle" about breaches of employees 
own employment contract which should be dealt with using the grievance procedure. 

  
3. Harassment or Victimisation 
  
3.1 The Councils committed to good practice and high standards and wants to be supportive of 

employees making the decision to report a concern. If an employee believes that what he/she is 
saying is true, they should have nothing to fear as he / she will be doing their duty to their 
employer and those for whom they are providing a service. 

  
3.2 The Council will not tolerate any bullying, harassment or victimisation (including informal 

pressures) and will take appropriate action to protect employees when they raise a concern.  Such 
retaliation could include, but is not limited to: 

 
 frequent and undesirable changes in work assigned; 
 unsubstantiated disciplinary action; 
 unjust denial of promotion or transfer. 

Page 9



BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 4 of 13 

        

 
Employees should refer to the Respecting People at Work Framework/ Employee Complaints (Grievance 
Procedure) if they have any concerns regarding their treatment within the workplace.  
  
3.3 Any investigation into allegations of potential malpractice will not influence or be influenced by 

any disciplinary, redundancy or other procedures that already affect employees. 
   
4. Confidentiality 
  
4.1 All concerns will be treated in confidence and every effort will be made not to reveal an 

employee's identity if they so wish.  At the appropriate time, however, an employee may need to 
be a witness, for instance if the matter leads to a disciplinary hearing or a criminal prosecution.   

 
4.2 In some cases, confidentiality may not be possible.  For instance, if you report abuse or a criminal 

offence, then the person you tell may have to take some action.  If it does become necessary to 
reveal your identity, you will be consulted before this action is taken.  If there is an unauthorised 
disclosure of your identity, disciplinary action may be taken against that individual. 

 
5. Anonymous Allegations 
  
5.1 This Procedure encourages employees to put their name to an allegation whenever possible. 

Concerns expressed anonymously are much harder to investigate but will be considered at the 
discretion of the Chief Executive (contact details in Appendix 1). In exercising this discretion the 
factors to be taken into account would include: 

  
 the seriousness of the issues raised 
 the credibility of the concern; and 
 the likelihood of confirming the allegation from attributable sources. 

   
6. Untrue Allegations 
  
6.1 If an employee makes an allegation, but it is not confirmed by the investigation, no action will be 

taken against them.  If, however, an employee makes an allegation frivolously, maliciously or for 
personal gain, disciplinary action may be taken against them.   

 
7. Support for Employees 
 
 Employees who raise concerns or who are the subject of an investigation can access confidential 

counselling through the Occupational Health Service.     
 
 The Employee Assistance Programme is an independent organisation that provides completely 

confidential help and assistance including counselling for employees and their immediate families 
for any personal or work related issues. It is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a 
year. They can be contacted on 0800 030 5182 (or 0044 161 836 9498 to call from outside UK and 
calls will be charged).  

Page 10



BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 5 of 13 

        

 
Counselling Advice - CounsellingAdvice@healthassured.co.uk 
 
To access the service online, please go to online health portal - www.healthassuredeap.co.uk 
Using the generic Username: Blackpool and Password: Council 

 
WHISTLEBLOWING PROCEDURE  

8. How to raise a concern 
 
8.1 You should raise this in the first instance with your line manager.  In most cases, the matter will be 

dealt with at that stage.  The earlier you raise your concern, the easier it will be to take action.  
REMEMBER, IF IN DOUBT, RAISE IT. 

 
8.2 If you feel unable to raise the issue with your line manager, or if your line manager does not take 

appropriate action to resolve the issue, you should approach your senior manager. 
 
8.3 Whether or not it will be considered reasonable for you to be able to discuss the issue with your 

manager depends on the seriousness and sensitivity of the issues involved and who is suspected of 
the malpractice.  For instance, if you have previously attempted, unsuccessfully, to raise the issue 
with your manager or where, you believe that the malpractice will only be dealt with by reporting 
it elsewhere, then you should do so.  

 
9. Managers: 
 

 have a responsibility to ensure that concerns are taken seriously; 
 where appropriate, should investigate and make an objective assessment of the 

concern; 
 should keep the employee advised of progress; 
 have a responsibility to ensure that the action necessary to resolve a concern is taken. 

 
10. There may be an existing procedure for you to follow which is specifically intended to address your 

specific area of concern and unless, in good faith, you feel unable to, you should follow the 
appropriate procedures – see Appendix 4 for further details. 

 
Internal Disclosures 
 
11. If you feel that your senior manager has not dealt with the issue appropriately, or if you feel unable 

to talk to that person (because of circumstances outlined above in Section 11.1), you should 
contact one of the designated Departmental Contact Persons listed in Appendix 1 and formally 
inform them of your concern.  This person will advise you as to the operation of the procedure, 
including whether you ought to be raising your concern under an existing procedure, as outlined in 
Section 13.   

 
 If you would rather contact someone outside your own Department, then one of the Corporate 

Whistleblowing Contacts listed in Appendix 1 will be able to discuss the matter with you.  

Page 11

mailto:CounsellingAdvice@healthassured.co.uk
http://www.healthassuredeap.co.uk/


BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 6 of 13 

        

 
11.1 If the Contact Person agrees that your concern should be dealt with under the Whistleblowing 

Procedure, it will be recorded in writing – using the form in Appendix 3 - and you will be given a 
copy. 

 
11.2 You may wish to consider discussing your concern with a colleague in some circumstances, as it can 

be easier to raise concerns if there is more than one witness. 
 

11.3 You are entitled to be accompanied by a trade union representative or work colleague at any 
meetings or interviews in connection with concerns you have raised.  If your chosen representative 
is someone who is a witness, or clearly someone who will need to be interviewed in his or her own 
right, an alternative should be chosen.   

 
How the Council will respond  
   
12. The Council will respond to any concern raised.  Where appropriate, the matters raised may: 
  

 be investigated by management, risk services , or through the disciplinary process; 
 be investigated under another procedure, e.g. child / adult protection; 
 be referred to the Police; 
 be referred to the Monitoring Officer; 
 be referred to the external auditor; 
 form the subject of an independent inquiry. 

 
12.1 The Whistleblowing Contact will write to you within ten working days (wherever reasonable 

possible) of a concern being raised to: 
 

 acknowledge that the concern has been received; 
 indicate how the matter will be dealt with; 
 where applicable, give an estimate of how long it will take to provide a final response; 
 inform you about staff support mechanisms. 

 
12.2 The Whistleblowing Contact will appoint an Investigating Officer who will investigate your concern.  

Managers of investigating officers must make reasonable allowances as regards time and workload 
to enable them to carry out a thorough and swift investigation. 

 
12.3 If, during the investigation, you are concerned about what progress is being made, require support 

or reassurance, or feel you may be being victimised or harassed as a result of making the 
disclosure, you should contact your Whistleblowing Contact. 
 

12.4 In order that you can be assured that your concern has been properly addressed, then - subject to 
legal constraints and following the investigation - the Whistleblowing Contact will write to you to 
inform you of the outcome.  However, this will not include details of any disciplinary action, which 
will remain confidential to the individual /s concerned. 
 

Page 12



BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 7 of 13 

        

The Responsible Officer 
 
13. The Director of Governance and Partnerships, in his role as ‘Monitoring Officer’ (see Appendix 1) 

has overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of this Policy and Procedure.  
Whistleblowing Contacts will report all concerns reported under this Procedure.  The Monitoring 
Officer will keep a record of all concerns raised and the outcomes.  The Director of Governance and 
Partnerships will report to the Council’s Standards Committee on an annual basis or more often, as 
appropriate.  

 
How the matter can be taken further 
 
14. Disclosure to Regulatory Bodies 

 
14.1 This procedure is intended to provide you with an avenue within the Council to raise concerns.  If 

you feel that your concern has not been dealt with satisfactorily and that it is right to take the 
matter outside the Council, then you should seek advice from the internal contact point in the first 
instance. If you still feel that the matter has not been dealt with satisfactorily then there are a 
number of possible external contact points, further details of which are given in Appendix 2 

 
14.2 A disclosure to a regulatory body will be protected in line with Part IV of the Employment Rights 

Act 1996 – the Public Interest Disclosure Act,  (click here for more information) if you have a 
reasonable belief that malpractice has occurred, is occurring or is likely to occur and you honestly 
and reasonably believe that the information and any allegation within it are substantially true. If 
you do take the matter outside of the Council, you should ensure that you do not disclose 
confidential information. Please check with your internal or external contact for clarification on 
these points.  

 

 

Page 13

http://www.pcaw.org.uk/files/PCaW_COP_FINAL.pdf


BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 8 of 13 

        

APPENDIX 1 – Internal Contacts 

Procedural Contacts 
 

Mark Towers  
Monitoring Officer,  Director of Governance and Partnerships,  Number One Bickerstaffe Square 
(01253) 477007  

Tracy Greenhalgh  
Chief Internal Auditor 4rd Floor, Number One Bickerstaffe Square.   (01253) 477264 / 07795640866 

Linda Dutton  
Head of HR and Workforce Development, 2nd Floor, Number One Bickerstaffe Square.   
Mob: 07554 606831 

Terry Hall  
Health and Safety Manager, 4th Floor, Number One Bickerstaffe Square.   
  (01253) 477264 / 07795640866 

Employee Relations Team 
Human Resources, 2nd Floor , Number One Bickerstaffe Square   (01253) 477230 Email: 
employeerelations@blackpool.gov.uk 

 
DEPARTMENTAL CONTACTS  

 

Adult Social 
Care 

Karen Smith,  
Head of Care and Support, 3rd 
Floor, Number One Bickerstaffe 
Square. 

 (01253) 477502 

Schools  Ann Dixon  
Principal Governor Services 
Officer,. Number One Bickerstaffe 
Square  
 (01253) 476512 

Children 
/Adult 
Services 

Hilary Wood  
Head of Business Support, 
Number One Bickerstaffe Square. 
 (01253) 476125  
 

Chief Executive  Sally Shaw ,  
Head of the Corporate Delivery 
Unit, 2rd Floor, Number One 
Bickerstaffe Square.  
 07747648216  

Governance 
and 
Partnerships 

Joceline Greenaway  
Head of Registration and 
Bereavement Services  
 (01253) 477173  

Public Health  Judith Mills 
Consultant in Public Health  
Number One Bickerstaffe Square. 
 (01253) 476368  

Resources  Louise Jones 
Head of Benefits and Customer 
Services  
Number One Bickerstaffe Square. 
 (01253) 478885 

Community and 
Environmental 
Services 

Amanda Jones   
Administration and Quality 
Manager  
Number One Bickerstaffe Square. 
 (01253) 478479 

Places  Philip Welsh  
Head of Visitor Economy  
Number One Bickerstaffe Square. 
 (01253) 477312 

Suspected 
Fraud 

Tracy Greenhalgh 
Chief Internal Auditor 
Number One Bickerstaff Square. 
Tel: (01253) 478554 

 

Page 14

mailto:employeerelations@blackpool.gov.uk


BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 9 of 13 

        

 
APPENDIX 2 – External Contacts (and the matters they would deal with) 

 
Listed below are the types of external organisations that as an employee you could contact 
 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) 
(proper conduct of public business, value for 
money, fraud and corruption in local government 
and health service bodies) 
 

The Environment Agency 
(Acts or omissions which have an actual or 
potential effect on the environment) 
 

Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education, 
Children’s Services and Skills 
(Matters relating to the regulation and inspection 
of establishments and agencies for children’s 
social care services) 

Health and Safety Executive 
(Health and safety of individuals at work, or the 
health and safety of the public arising out of or in 
connection with the activities of persons at work) 
 

Certification Officer 
(fraud and other irregularities, relating to the 
financial affairs of trade unions and employers’ 
associations) 

The Pensions Regulatory  
(The protection of members’ benefits under 
occupational and private pensions schemes) 

The Charity Commission  for England and Wales 
(Administration of charities and of funds given or 
held for charitable purposes) 

Local Government Ombudsman 
(Council maladministration) 

Care Quality Commission 
(The administration of adult social care services) 

Children’s Commissioner 
(matters relating to the rights, welfare and 
interests of children in England) 

Commissioners for Her Majesty’s Revenue and 
Customs 
(About the administration of UK taxes; the 
administration of N.I. and tax credits systems; 
Custom and border-related functions and criminal 
investigations) 

The Information Commissioner 
(Compliance with the requirement of legislation 
relating to data protection and to freedom of 
information) 

The Comptroller and Auditor General 
(About the proper conduct of public business, 
value for money, fraud and corruption in relation 
to the provision of public services) 

 

 

 
For full details of the above organisations contact information including email address, telephone numbers 
and addresses are available at the following hyperlink:   

 
 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/510962/BIS-16-79-
blowing-the-whistle-to-a-prescribed-person.pdf 

Page 15

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/510962/BIS-16-79-blowing-the-whistle-to-a-prescribed-person.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/510962/BIS-16-79-blowing-the-whistle-to-a-prescribed-person.pdf


BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 10 of 13 

        

APPENDIX 3 - Report Made under the Whistle blowing Procedure 
 

Blackpool Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, professionalism and accountability.  
In line with that commitment we expect employees, and others that we deal with, who have serious concerns 
about any aspect of the Council's work, to come forward and voice those concerns. 

 

Description of the Concern. 
 
Where possible include: 

 
 
 Dates of incidents 
 Who was involved 
 Why this is a concern 
 Whether there were any other witnesses 
 Whether you have tried to raise this with your 

manager 
 What the result was 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continue on separate sheet if necessary 

You are encouraged to put your name to this report.  Concerns expressed anonymously are much harder to 
investigate but will be considered at the discretion of the Chief Executive. 

Name:  
 

Department:  

Address:  
 
 

Contact Telephone No.:  

Date:    

 
To be completed by Designated Officer on Receipt of Report 

Department:  Reference: 
 

 

Date of Report:  
 

Designated Officer:  

 
 
 

Page 16



BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 11 of 13 

        

APPENDIX 3a – Advice given by The Whistleblowing Departmental Contacts  
[To be completed by the above contacts only] 

 

Blackpool Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, professionalism and accountability.  
In line with that commitment we expect employees, and others that we deal with, who have serious concerns 
about any aspect of the Council's work, to come forward and voice those concerns. 

 

Description of the Concern. 
 
Where possible include: 

 Dates of incidents 
 Who was involved 
 Why this is a concern 
 Whether there were any other witnesses 
 Whether you have tried to raise this with your 

manager 
 What the result was 

 
Advice given if no further action was taken  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
To be completed by Designated Officer on Receipt of Report 

Department:  Reference: 
 

 

Date of Report:  
 

Designated Officer:  

 
Please Note : Whistleblowing Contacts will report all concerns reported under this Procedure to the 
Monitoring Officer who will keep a record of all concerns raised and the outcomes. 
 
 

Page 17



BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 12 of 13 

        

Appendix 4 – Existing Procedures to raise issues of Concern  
 
There may be an existing procedure for you to follow which is specifically intended to address your specific  
area of concern and unless, in good faith, you feel unable to, you should follow the appropriate  
procedures:  

A) Employment Related  
 

Type  Policy Document (click on the relevant document to 
access)  

Employment Matters  Employee Complaints (Grievance Procedure).   
 
The procedure does not cover the following subjects: 
 

 disciplinary matters, for which there are separate 
procedures; 

 Income Tax and National Insurance; 

 The Rules of Pension Schemes; 

 any matter concerning the terms of a collective 
agreement which you ought to properly take up 
through the employees’ side of the Joint 
Negotiating Machinery, or 

 any other matter for which similar appeal / 
machinery exists. 

 

Bullying or harassment Respecting People at Work Framework. 
 

Discrimination Equality Policy Framework  (Workforce) 

For further information: 
Employee Relations Team Tel: 01253 477230 or email employeerelations@blackpool.gov.uk). 
 

 
If you have a concern about a Health and Safety issue, you should contact your Departmental 
Health and Safety Officer or the Health and Safety Manager 

 
B) Complaints against a services or Council employee from a Member of the public or a service user 

 

Service Area  Policy Document  

General Council Services  Customer Feedback Policy  
 

Adult Social Care  Adult Social Care Customer feedback Procedure  

Children’s Social care  Children Services  Customer feedback Procedure 

For further information:  
Customer Relations team  (Tel: 01253 477700  or email customer relations@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

However if there is any concern about the welfare of a child or vulnerable adult, please  

Page 18

http://hub/intranet/modules/services/default.aspx?id=147&did=-731078
http://hub/intranet/modules/services/default.aspx?id=147&did=-1678463
http://hub/intranet/modules/services/default.aspx?id=147&did=-730491
mailto:employeerelations@blackpool.gov.uk
https://www.blackpool.gov.uk/Your-Council/The-Council/Documents/Customer-Feedback-Policy-Nov-2016.pdf
https://www.blackpool.gov.uk/Residents/Health-and-social-care/Documents/Adult-Services-Feedback-form.pdf
https://www.blackpool.gov.uk/Residents/Health-and-social-care/Social-services-complaints.aspx


BLACKPOOL COUNCIL   

Topic Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

 

Department HR, Communications and Engagement 
 

Ref. Number CHR/0037/08 

Authorised By SLT Sub Group 22/8/05   Issue Date 01 February 2007 

Author HR Policy Officer    Revision No 14- May 2017 

End users of hard copies of this document are responsible for ensuring their copy is up to date. 
 

Page 13 of 13 

        

ring either:  Adult social care: 01253 477592 Children’s services: 01253 477299 
or email duty.assessment@blackpool.gov.uk 

 
C) Issues about fraud?  

 

Service Area  Policy Document  

Corporate Fraud  
If you suspect a fraud is being 
committed in relation to a colleague, a 
contractor or a member of the public 
(such as Council Tax Reduction) 
 

 
Corporate Fraud Reporting form. 
 

Benefit Fraud  
If you suspect benefit fraud is being committed this can be reported three ways :  
By telephone: Contact the National Benefit Fraud Hotline on 0800 854 440. Your call is free and 
confidential you do not have to give your name or address. Lines are open Monday to Friday 
8.00am to 6.00pm.If you have speech or hearing problems you can use a text phone service on 
0800 328 0512 or Welsh speakers can call on 0800 678 3722. 
 
Online at:    www.gov.uk/report-benefit-fraud 
 
By Post:     NBFH, PO Box 224, Preston PR1 1GP 
 

For further information: 
Tracy Greenhalgh Tel: 01253 478554 email : corporate.fraud@blackpool.gov.uk 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19

mailto:duty.assessment@blackpool.gov.uk
http://hub/esb/modules/workmanagement/viewitem.aspx?template=772&formfill=1&theme=fraud-referral&refresh=1&returnurl=/intranet/FraudSubmitThankyou.aspx


This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Standards Committee 

Relevant Officer: Mark Towers, Director of Governance and Partnerships / Monitoring 
Officer 

Date of Meeting: 20 July 2017 

 

STANDARDS UPDATE REPORT 
 
1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 To consider an update report from the Monitoring Officer on standards issues raised 
during the previous 12 months under the standards framework. 
 

2.0 Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1 To consider the update report and note the issues raised to date. 
 

3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

To make Standards Committee members aware of the type of issues raised. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered: 

 None - this is an update report. 
 

4.0 Council Priority: 
 

4.1 This report covers all of the Council’s priorities. 
 

5.0 Background Information 
 

5.1 
 
 

The Monitoring Officer has been appointed as Proper Officer to receive allegations of 
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct regarding elected members and co-opted 
members.  The Monitoring Officer has delegated authority, after consultation with an 
Independent Person, to determine whether an allegation of a member's misconduct 
requires investigation and to arrange such an investigation.  

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



5.2 However, the Monitoring Officer should seek resolution of complaints without formal 
investigation wherever practicable and he has the discretion to refer matters to the 
Standards Committee where he feels it is inappropriate to take a decision on a 
referral for investigation.  He should also periodically prepare reports for the 
Standards Committee on the discharge of this function.  
 

5.3 It should be noted that there are a number of stages in dealing with reported 
matters.  Some matters are brought to the attention of the Monitoring Officer 
without merit.  In instances where a breach may have been considered to arise and in 
line with agreed procedures, wherever possible the Monitoring Officer should seek 
the resolution of complaints without the need for formal investigation.  Periodic 
reports to the Standards Committee show all the matters, which have been brought 
to the attention of the Monitoring Officer for review in order that members of the 
Standards Committee have an appreciation of all matters arising. 
 

5.4 Update on standards issues raised 
 
The schedule below sets out the issues raised on a category basis since the last report 
to Committee in July 2016. 
 
Bringing office into disrepute – a complaint was made regarding a councillor failing 
to report a matter to the relevant department.  This matter was concluded after the 
initial assessment phase and advice given. No further action taken (June/ July 2016).  
 
Treating others with respect – no complaint received but behaviour observed. 
Advice given and support from the Group Leader in the process (November 2016 and 
February 2017). 
 
Failure to declare an interest at a meeting – one councillor - see separate report 
(February 2017). 
 
Failure to register interests upon taking office and failure to update changes in 
interests within 28 days – three councillors - see separate report (April/May 2017) 
 
Conflict of Interest – advice given regarding a potential conflict of interest. Action 
taken to avoid the conflict of interest occurring. 
 
An election related behaviour issue was also reported in March 2017.  Although the 
elected member was not acting in an official capacity and therefore this was not a 
code of conduct issue, a public apology was made for any offence caused. 
 

5.5 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 
 

No  

Page 22



5.6 List of Appendices: 
 

 None. 
 

6.0 Legal considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None - the Council has a locally agreed procedure for dealing with allegations. 
 

7.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None 

8.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 

9.0 Financial considerations: 
 

9.1 
 

There are no financial implications associated with this report.  

10.0 Risk management considerations: 
 

10.1 None. 
 

11.0 Ethical considerations: 
 

11.1 
 

None. 

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken: 
 

12.1 
 

Yes – on relevant complaints, an independent person was consulted and advice 
sought. 
 

13.0 Background papers: 
 

13.1 
 

Exempt. 
 

 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 19 JULY 2016
	3 WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY
	Appendix 3(a) - Whistleblowing Procedure

	4 STANDARDS UPDATE REPORT

